INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Inv. No. 337-TA-769]

In the Matter of Certain Handheld Electronic Computing Devices, Related Software, and Components Thereof; Notice of Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade

Commission. **ACTION:** Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a complaint was filed with the U.S. International Trade Commission on March 21, 2011, under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, on behalf of Microsoft Corporation of Redmond, Washington. An amended complaint and additional exhibits were filed on April 8, 2011 and April 12, 2011. The complaint, as amended, alleges violations of section 337 based upon the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain handheld electronic computing devices, related software, and components thereof by reason of infringement of certain claims of U.S. Patent No. 5,778,372 ("the '372 patent"); U.S. Patent No. 5,889,522 ("the '522 patent"); U.S. Patent No. 6,339,780 ("the '780 patent"); U.S. Patent No. 6,891,551 ("the '551 patent"); and U.S. Patent No. 6,957,233 ("the '233 patent"). The complaint further alleges that an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337.

The complainant requests that the Commission institute an investigation and, after the investigation, issue an exclusion order and a cease and desist order.

ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for any confidential information contained therein, is available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, SW., Room 112, Washington, DC 20436, telephone 202-205-2000. Hearing impaired individuals are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on 202–205–1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at 202-205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at http:// www.usitc.gov. The public record for this investigation may be viewed on the

Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at *http://edis.usitc.gov*.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: The Office of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, telephone (202) 205–2560.

Authority: The authority for institution of this investigation is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, and in section 210.10 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2011).

Scope of Investigation: Having considered the complaint, the U.S. International Trade Commission, on April 18, 2011, ordered that—

- (1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, an investigation be instituted to determine whether there is a violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain handheld electronic computing devices, related software, and components thereof that infringe one or more of claims 1 and 5 of the '372 patent; claims 1, 2, and 12 of the '522 patent; claims 1-6, 9-14, 17-26, and 29-42 of the '780 patent; claims 1-3, 5, and 7-11 of the '551 patent; claims 21 and 22 of the '233 patent, and whether an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337;
- (2) For the purpose of the investigation so instituted, the following are hereby named as parties upon which this notice of investigation shall be served:
- (a) The complainant: Microsoft Corporation, One Microsoft Way, Redmond, WA 98052.
- (b) The respondents are the following entities alleged to be in violation of section 337, and are the parties upon which the complaint is to be served: Barnes & Noble, Inc., 122 Fifth Avenue, New York, NY 10011.

barnesandnoble.com LLC, 76 9th Avenue, 9th Floor, New York, NY 10011.

Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd., 2 Zihyou Street, Tucheng City, Taipei County, 236, Taiwan.

Foxconn Electronics, Inc., 2 Zihyou Street, Tucheng City, Taipei County, 236, Taiwan.

Foxconn Precision Component (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd., No. 2, East Ring Road, No. 10 Industrial Zone, Yousong, Longhua, Shenzhen, Guandong 518109, China.

Foxconn International Holdings Ltd., 8F Peninsula Tower, 538 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan Kowloon, New Territories, Hong Kong.

- Inventec Corporation, Inventec Building, No. 66 Hou-Kang Street, Shin-Lin District, Taipei County, 111, Taiwan.
- (c) The Office of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, SW., Suite 401, Washington, DC 20436; and

(3) For the investigation so instituted, the Honorable Paul J. Luckern, Chief Administrative Law Judge, U.S. International Trade Commission, shall designate the presiding Administrative Law Judge.

Responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation must be submitted by the named respondents in accordance with section 210.13 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 19 CFR 201.16(d)-(e) and 210.13(a), such responses will be considered by the Commission if received not later than 20 days after the date of service by the Commission of the complaint and the notice of investigation. Extensions of time for submitting responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation will not be granted unless good cause therefore is shown.

Failure of a respondent to file a timely response to each allegation in the complaint and in this notice may be deemed to constitute a waiver of the right to appear and contest the allegations of the complaint and this notice, and to authorize the administrative law judge and the Commission, without further notice to the respondent, to find the facts to be as alleged in the complaint and this notice and to enter an initial determination and a final determination containing such findings, and may result in the issuance of an exclusion order or a cease and desist order or both directed against the respondent.

Issued: April 19, 2011. By order of the Commission.

James R. Holbein,

Acting Secretary to the Commission.
[FR Doc. 2011–9890 Filed 4–22–11; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree Pursuant to the Clean Air Act

Notice is hereby given that on April 19, 2011, a proposed Consent Decree in *United States et al.* v. *Terra Industries Inc. et al.*, Civ. A. No. 5:11–cv–04038 was lodged with the United States Court for the Northern District of Iowa.

In this action, the United States and Co-Plaintiff States of Iowa, Mississippi and Oklahoma, sought the penalties and injunctive relief for violations of the Clean Air Act ("CAA") by Terra Industries Inc. ("Terra Industries"), Terra International (Oklahoma) Inc. ("Terra Oklahoma"), Terra Nitrogen, Limited Partnership ("Terra Nitrogen"), Port Neal Corporation ("Port Neal"), and Terra Mississippi Nitrogen, Inc. ("Terra Mississippi"), (collectively "Defendants" or "Terra"). Defendants are the owners and operators of nine nitric acid plants in the States of Iowa, Mississippi and Oklahoma. The Complaint alleged violations of: (1) The Prevention of Significant Deterioration of Air Quality provisions ("PSD"), Part C of Title I, at §§ 160–169B of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. 7470-7492 and corollary State Implementation Plans ("SIPs"); (2) the New Source Performance Standards for Nitric Acid Plants ("NSPS") promulgated pursuant to Section 111(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. 7411(b) and codified at 40 CFR part 60, Subpart G; and (3) the Title V Permit Program Sections 502 and 503 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. 7661a through 7661f, and corollary state provisions.

Pursuant to the proposed Consent Decree, Defendants will pay to the United States and State Co-Plaintiffs a civil penalty of \$625,000 and implement injunctive relief at all nine of their nitric acid plants.

The Department of Justice will receive for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of this publication comments relating to the Consent Decree. Comments should be addressed to the Assistant Attorney General, Environment and Natural Resources Division, and either e-mailed to pubcomment-ees.enrd@usdoj.gov or mailed to P.O. Box 7611, U.S. Department of Justice, Washington, DC 20044-7611, and should refer to United States et al. v. Terra Industries Inc. et al., Civ. A. No. 5:11-cv-04038 (Northern District of Iowa), Department of Justice Case Number 90-5-2-1-2062/

During the public comment period, the Consent Decree may be examined at the Office of the United States Attorney, Northern District of Iowa, Hach Building Suite 400, 401 First St. SE, Cedar Rapids, IA 52401-1825. The Consent Decree may also be examined on the following Department of Justice Web site, http://www.usdoj.gov/enrd/ Consent Decrees.html. A copy of the Consent Decree may also be obtained by mail from the Consent Decree Library, P.O. Box 7611, U.S. Department of Justice, Washington, DC 20044-7611 or by faxing or e-mailing a request to Tonia Fleetwood (tonia.fleetwood@usdoj.gov), fax no. (202) 514-0097, phone

confirmation number (202) 514–1547. In requesting a copy from the Consent Decree Library, please enclose a check in the amount of \$18.50 (25 cents per page reproduction cost) payable to the U.S. Treasury.

Maureen Katz,

Assistant Section Chief.
[FR Doc. 2011–9876 Filed 4–22–11; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4410–15–P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Office of Justice Programs [OJP (NIJ) Docket No. 1551]

National Institute of Justice Offender Tracking System Standard Workshop

AGENCY: National Institute of Justice, DOJ.

ACTION: Notice of Meeting of the NIJ Offender Tracking System Standard Workshop.

SUMMARY: The National Institute of Justice (NIJ) is hosting an Officer Tracking System Standard Workshop specifically to introduce manufacturers, certification bodies and test laboratories to the new Offender Tracking System Standard that is under development and to receive input and feedback. All participants are strongly encouraged to come prepared to ask questions and to voice suggestions and concerns.

The workshop will be held on Thursday, May 12, 2011 from 9 a.m. to 3 p.m. (EST) at the 20 F Street, NW., Conference Center, located at 20 F Street, NW., Washington, DC 20001–6701. The meeting room is the Conference Room B. Space is limited at this workshop, and as a result, we request that each participating organization limit their representatives to no more than two. Participants planning to attend are responsible for their own travel arrangements and lodging.

Please visit the Web site below to submit your registration request: http://www.justnet.org/Documents/NIJ-Offender-Tracking-System-Standard-Workshop-Registration-Form.pdf You will receive a response to your request within two (2) business days.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Jack Harne, by telephone at 202–616–2911 [Note: this is not a toll-free telephone number], or by e-mail at Jack.Harne@usdoj.gov.

John H. Laub,

Director, National Institute of Justice. [FR Doc. 2011–9903 Filed 4–22–11; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4410–18–P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Office of Justice Programs

[OJP (NIJ) Docket No. 1550]

Protective Helmet Standard Special Technical Committee Request for Proposals for Certification and Testing Expertise

AGENCY: National Institute of Justice, DOJ.

ACTION: Request for Proposals for Certification and Testing Expertise.

SUMMARY: The National Institute of Justice (NIJ) is in the process of developing a new Protective (possibly including both ballistic and riot protection) Helmet Standard and corresponding certification program requirements. This work will be performed by a Special Technical Committee (STC), comprised of practitioners from the field, researchers, testing experts, certification experts, and representatives from stakeholder organizations. It is anticipated that the STC members will participate in up to twelve 2-day meetings over an 18-month time period with the goal of completing development of the standard and certification program requirements.

It is anticipated that STC meetings will begin in June 2011. Travel expenses and per diem will be reimbursed for all STC meetings; however, participation time will not be funded. NII is seeking representatives from (1) certification bodies and (2) test laboratories with experience in programs for similar types of personal protective equipment. Additional preferred knowledge includes experience with ballistic testing or experience with law enforcement operations. There are up to four positions to be filled on the STC, and NII will accept the first 20 submissions for review. Interested parties are requested to nominate individuals from their organizations and submit no more than two pages describing the nominee's applicable experience, preferred knowledge, and affiliations with standards development organizations. To be considered, there must not be any conflict of interest in which the proposed STC member has a direct financial relationship with manufacturers of protective helmets.

Debra Stoe is the NIJ Program Manager responsible for this work, and Jim Wong is the point of contact for Ms. Stoe. Responses to this request for proposals shall be submitted to Jim Wong at jim.wong@srnl.doe.gov by May 13, 2011. The submissions will be reviewed, and participants will be